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Ford's Theatre is a three story brick structure covered by a gable slate roof.
The west facade of the theatre has five arched doorways at street level, painted
gray. A cast iron beltcourse runs along the top of this level. Six brick
pilasters with cast iron caps and bases extend the height of the second and
third levels, dividing the facade into five bays., Between the six pilasters

are two rows of five casement windows, providing light and air for the lobbies
of the dress and family circles. Their cast iron lintels have foliated console
ends. The sills are also cast iron with small consoles as brackets. The heavy
cornice applied across the facade has a brick architrave and frieze with
modilliohs, fac1a and mo1d1ngs 1n wood. The peak of the’ gab1e roof acts as

the ped1ment and 1% als0' decorated with modillions. The cornice and pediment
remained unfinished until 1865, and in the historic Mathew Brady photograph

the cornice and pediment Tookouts jut out 1ike sawteeth. Of the five arched
doorways, four of them open into the lobby of the theatre and give access to

the north ticket window, the orchestra and the dress circle. The fifth door
known as the gallery door at the south end of the facade provides access to

the gallery ticket window and stairwell 1ead1ng into the family circle.

The exterior walls are the only portions rema1n1ng of the nineteenth century
theatre. The entire interior was reconstructed in the 1960's to recreate

the theatre as it appeared on the night Lincoln was assassinated, April 14, 1865.

The rear of the building has a large barn type door in the center and a stage
door entrance at the north end. Three wooden ventilators with slate hipped
roofs rise ‘above the main roof along the ridge line. A small four-story,
L-shaped addition on the north side at the rear serves as dressing rooms. This
area, not shown to ‘the pub11c, was renovated in the 1967 restoration for use

by current prqduct1op§ It has a copper shed roof.

In the same restoration the brick south addition (demolished 1930) was rebuilt
to complete the external appearance of Ford's Theatre facade. Historically
the building functioned as a lounge for the theatre and had connecting entrances
on all floors, forming essentially one building. The first level was a bar
(Star Saloon, 1863-65) and restaurant. Today the Star Salobn functions as the
box office wh11e the other two floors provide assembly space and restrooms.
Until the late 1970's the third floor housed the Lincoln Museum which is now
being stored in Union Station. The first level has three sets of glass

double doors and one paneled door, all with transoms, separated by cast iron
pilasters. A frieze of sheet iron and a wooden cornice runs across the facade
above the pilasters. The upper two floors are unadorned, with jack arched
windows, three to a floor. The "Star Saloon" has a slate ridged roof which
slopes north and south. The interior of this building is not a restoration
but was fitted to suit the needs of modern usage and tourist activity.
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The interior of Ford's Theatre has been rebuilt to approximate its appearance
on the night of April 14, 1865. Historic photographs, drawings, woodcuts, and
contemporary accounts were used to arrive at a careful reconstruction of
interior furnishings and decorations.

The building had been converted to offices in 1865, then collapsed in 1892,
and the rear wall was rebuilt at the time. The south wall was stucco
plastered in 1930, when the original "Star Saloon" building was demolished.
Also on the west or front facade all but the two casement windows in the
south bay had been replaced by larger sash windows. The ventilators had
also been removed and a large skylight installed. 1In the 1960's restoration
all these later features were removed and the building was returned to its
original appearance. The one major exception was the facade cornice, which
was unfinished in 1865 and completed Tater while the building was under
government ownership. The cornice was left in its completed form.

The Petersen House

The Petersen house, directly across the street from Ford's Theatre, was built
in 1849. The house is a three story, flat-roofed, brick row house built over
a raised basement. There are three double hung sash windows across each of
the upper two floors. The first floor has two windows and an end door with

a wooden frontispiece of doric pilasters supporting a frieze with a dentiled
molding and a small projecting cornice. The door is reached by steps which
curve out from the side of the platform in front of the door, with an iron
banister which follows the curve and continues as a railing around the front
stoop. The stairs and stoop are of Seneca sandstone. Under the stoop, which
is supported at the far corner by a short Seneca sandstone doric column, stairs
lead down to the basement entrance. There are also two windows at the basement
level. At a date prior to 1865, a wing was added to the rear, about one-half
the width of the house, which included a basement and a first floor. The
original section has a long hall down one side with two rooms opening off it,
on the first floor and basement levels. The second and third floors have an
additional small room in the front hall area. The rear addition had two small
bedrooms , and another small room on the first floor and two rooms in the
basement, one of which contains a modern bathroom. A small boxed stairway in
the center of the rear ell gives access from the basement to the first floor.
The front and rear parlors on the first floor, the first floor hallway, and
Willie Clark's bedroom in the rear ell where Lincoln died, all have been
restored to approximate their 1865 appearance. The remainder of the house

is used for storage. A later rear addition of 1871-2 was removed in the
restoration of 1959. At that time the building was cleaned by sandblasting.
New steps, platform, column, and support under the column were duplicated

and the iron railing repaired.
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The Lincoln bedroom suffered from water damage, and in 1979-80 the house was
closed again for repairs and complete restoration. At that time the parlors
were recreated in a carefully researched high Victorian style, and the
Lincoln deathroom was reconstructed more accurately from original drawings
and an original photograph.

The Lincoln Museum and Library

The basis of the Lincoln Museum and Library is the Osborn H. Oldroyd Lincoln
collection, which Mr. Oldroyd set up in the Petersen house in 1892. The
collection contained over 3000 items, and was augmented by those artifacts
related to the assassination used as state's evidence in the trial of the
conspirators. 0ldroyd maintained his collection in the Petersen house after
the purchase of the house by the Federal government in 1896. The government
purchased the collection itself from Oldroyd in 1926 for the sum of $50,000.
The collection continued to be exhibited in the Petersen house .until 1932
when the Lincoln Museum was opened to the public in the Ford's Theatre
building. When the theatre was restored to its 1865 appearance in the mid
1960's, a small portion of the collection was utilized in the assassination
alcove in the new basement museum, and the remainder of the collection was
stored in Ford's Theatre with the Lincoln Library, situated on the third
floor of the "Star Saloon" portion of the building. In the late 1970's the
collection and Lincoln Library were moved to the NCR Curatorial Vault at
Union Station then in operation by the National Park Service as the National
Visitors Center. Only those artifacts and books within the collection
original to or historically associated with the Ford's Theatre and Petersen
house site are to be included in this nomination.
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Ford's Theatre 15 signhificant beca

L

uSe it-was the location of the assassination of

Abraham Lincoln on the night of April 14, 1865, while the President and Mrs. Lincoln

were attending a performance of the play, "Our American Cousin."

Actor John Wilkes

Booth, in this first assassination of an American president, removed Lincoln's
effective leadership at a very crucial moment at the end of the American Civil War.
Lincoln's successor attempted to carry out his predecessor's magnanimous policies
toward the defeated south only to be overwhelmed by the Radical Republicans in
Congress who demanded severe treatment for the former Confederate States. This
policy of Military Reconstruction in turn augmented generations of bitterness

between the two sections of the country.

Lincoln's assassination in a theatre

by an actor accentuated the disreputable image the American stage enjoyed in the
late 19th century rural and small town areas.

The old Ford's Theatre building was first constructed as the First Baptist Church in
1833. In 1859 the structure was abandoned as a place of worship, and in 1861 John T.
Ford, a theatre entrepreneur from Baltimore, Teased the building for five years with
an option to buy after that time.” Despite a prediction by a member of the church
board of a dire fate for anyone who turned the former house of worship into a theatre,

Ford commenced theatrical performances.

In 1862 Ford renovated the theatre and called

it Ford's Atheneum. On December 30, 1862, the theatre burned to the ground leaving
only blackened walls. In 1863 a more elaborate edifice was constructed to replace
the burned out church building, and on August 27, 1863, Ford reopened Ford's New
Theatre. A three story brick addition to the south was constructed in 1863, which

became the Star Saloon and restaurant.

Lincoln had attended Ford's Theatre eight

times up to 1865, After the assassination the fate of the theatre remained dubious,
and Ford attempted to stage another performance on July 10, 1865, after the hanging
of the conspirators. However, that night theatre goers were confronted by a sign:

"Closed by Order of the Secretary of War."

Shortly thereafter the theatre was taken

over by the government to be converted into a three story office building, and Ford
was given a cash payment. In August 1865 the interior was stripped out, and the
building was converted to the Army Medical Museum, which occupied the third floor. ,
The Office of Records and Pensions, and the Adjutant General's Office used the second
floor. When the Surgeon General vacated the building in 1887, the Adjutant General

took over the entire structure.

In 1893 a forty-foot section of the front of the

building collapsed from the third floor killing 22 government employees and injuring
65 others. From 1893 to 1931 the building served as publications depot for the
Adjutant General. In 1933, the Ford's Theatre building was turned over to the
Department of the Interior and in 1932 the Lincoln Museum was opened on the third
floor with the Oldroyd Collection being brought over from the Petersen House.

Offices occupied the upper floors.
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In 1930 the south addition (Star Saloon) was demolished and replaced by a
parking Tot.

Senator Milton R. Young of North Dakota introduced in 1946 the first piece
of legislation bearing on the restoration of Ford's Theatre. An amount of
$200,000 was provided in 1954 for a preliminary engineering report on the
building. 1In June 1964, Congress voted funds for the full restoration of
Ford's Theatre and the building to the south known as "Star Saloon." The
interior was restored to its 1865 appearance and plans were made to reopen
Ford's as a living theatre with live productions. The Lincoln Museum was
redesigned and placed in the basement of the theatre. A restored Ford's
Theatre opened on January 21, 1968. Since that time it has been the scene
of many successful productions for the Washington theatre-going public.

Petersen House

The Petersen house is significant in that it is the house where President
Lincoln died. At the time of Lincoln's death the house at 453 10th Street, N.W.
(now 516) was owned by William A. Petersen, a German tailor. Petersen purchased
the site for the house on February 9, 1849. Soon afterward he constructed the
plain three story and basement red brick townhouse. The rear ell of the house
was added sometime before 1865, and was extended in 1871-72. 1In 1871 William
Petersen died followed four months later by his wife. 1In 1878 the Petersen
heirs sold the house to Louis Schade and family who printed a German-American
newspaper on the premises. So many tourists came to the house asking to see the
room where Lincoln died that the Schades became annoyed and moved out in 1893.
Under the provisions of the Sundry Civil Appropriations Act, approved June 11,
1896, Congress provided $30,000 for the purchase of the house. Mrs. Louis
Schade agreed to sell, and maintenance of the house was placed under the U.S.
Army Corps of Engineers, Office of Public Buildings and Grounds. Also in 189,
Osborn H. Oldroyd was placed in charge of the premises. He moved into the
Petersen House and placed his large collection of Lincolniana on display for
public viewing. 0ldroyd and his collection had actually been occupying the
house after 1893, when the District of Columbia Memorial Association rented the
house from Schade. As previously stated the government purchased the Oldroyd
collection from Oldroyd in 1926. The collection continued to be exhibited at
the Petersen house until 1932, when it was moved into the Lincoln Museum in
Ford's Theatre. Both sites came under the auspices of the National Park Service
in 1933. The Park Service has maintained the house as an historic house museum,
re-creating the scene at the time of Lincoln's death.



